CITY OF FULLERTON
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION
MINUTES
Regular Meeting
City Council Chamber
Monday, February 9, 2009
6:30 p.m.
CALL TO ORDER
Vice Chair Dasney called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.
FLAG SALUTE
Commissioner Adam led the flag salute.

ROLL CALL

Present. Shawna Adam, Sueling Chen, Kathleen Dasney, Kathleen Shanfield, Nancy
Spencer, Scott Stanford

Absent:  Craig Russell

Staff: Parks and Recreation Director Joe Felz; Parks and Recreation Managers
Hugo Curiel and Judy Peterson; Aaron Orozco, Recreation Supervisor; Parks
Project Specialist Doug Pickard; Landscape Superintendent Dennis Quinlivan;
Building and Facilities Superintendent Lyman Otley

PUBLIC COMMENT

None.

CONSENT ITEMS (ltems 1 - 3)

Commissioner- Stanford MADE A MOTION and Commissioner Adam SECONDED the
motion to approve the consent items as written.

AYES: Adam, Chen, Dasney, Shanfield, Spencer, Stanford
NOES: None

ABSENT:  Russell

The MOTION PASSED unanimously.

1. MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 12, 2009 COMMISSION MEETING
Recommendation to approve the Minutes of the January 12, 2009 Commission Meeting.

ITEM# 1_



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 2
February 9, 2009

2 LANDSCAPE DIVISION MONTHLY REPORT FOR JANUARY 2009

Recommendation to receive and file the Landscape Division January 2009 Monthly
Report.

Commissioner Chen asked for elaboration on the Arbor Day event scheduled for March
14™ noted in the Landscape Division report. Landscape Superintendent Quinlivan said it
was a state and national event, and several non-profit organizations would be planting 20
trees at Coyote Hills Park, on the northwest corner of Gilbert and Rosecrans.

Vice Chair Dasney asked about the Center for Natural Land Management noted in the
same report, and asked who they were. He said it was a company set up through a
mitigation agreement with Unocal, and was responsible for maintaining the interior area of
Panorama Park.

Commissioner Spencer asked Superintendent Quinlivan about the invasion of the lerp
psyllid on the eucalyptus trees, saying she'd never seen it worse. He agreed it was
“pretty devastating” when they first hit. He said the natural predators brought in to combat
them did a good job, but after awhile there was nothing for them to feed on, so the
psyllids returned. He added that the psyllids essentially destroyed all the red gum
eucalyptus in Fullerton, which will no longer be planted. Instead, California sycamores,
London planes, and pepper trees will be used.

3. BUILDING AND FACILITIES DIVISION MONTHLY REPORT FOR JANUARY
2009

Recommendation to receive and file the Building and Facilities Division January 2009
Monthly Report.

Vice Chair Dasney asked about the waterless urinals noted in the Building and Facilities
Division report, and if all urinals were being replaced with the waterless ones or if it was a
trial. Superintendent Otley said it was not a trial, that the City Manager and Council had
directed staff to save water, and that the urinals were being funded through grants, with
the City to maintain them. He added that the City was required to inventory every toilet in
the City and to replace with low-flow ones where needed. He said stainless steel is used
because they are the easiest to maintain and least likely to be damaged.

REGULAR BUSINESS (ltems 4 — 9)

4. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE POOCH PARK AS A PERMANENT PARK
FACILITY AND APPROVAL OF THE FORMATION OF A DOG PARK NON-
PROFIT ORGANIZATION

Director Felz said staff was bringing the Pooch Park item back from last month per
Commission’s direction, and that staff was seeking a Commission recommendation that
the Pooch Park at Hunt Branch Library be designated for permanent status. An
additional recommendation was that the Pooch Park Advisory Committee be allowed to
form as a non-profit 501(c)3 organization with the eventual goal of contracting with the
Commission and City Council for management and oversight of Pooch Park policies
and procedures.



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 3
February 9, 2009

Based on Commission’s recommendation tonight, Director Felz said staff would take
this item to City Council for its approval, and then also begin working immediately on
the non-profit status process. Director Felz said the Advisory Committee was a “great
affinity group” that works hard and that staff couldn't manage the park without it. He
explained that documents were expected to be filed with the State Attorney General's
Office by July 1.  On another track, permanent improvements to the park and its
inclusion in the Capital Improvement Project Program were also being considered for
the long-term. Director Felz noted that Bill Stefanski, Chair of the Pooch Park Ad Hoc
Committee, was at tonight's meeting.

Vice Chair Dasney quoted from the agenda letter in the “Discussion” section: “...during
the almost two years of its ‘trial period’, the Pooch Park has consistently shown itself to
be a popular, growing and well-run park. Staff believes that the Pooch Park is ready to
end its trial period and become a permanent park facility,” saying that this statement
“says it all’ and Commission should vote to approve the park as a permanent facility.
She then asked for any commissioner comments.

Commissioner Chen said she appreciated that Director Felz went to the Library
Foundation and had received its strong support since the library was right next to Pooch
Park and they could share the concerns of people with children and those using the
library. Commissioner Chen noted that there are those who were “intimidated by the
dogs,” and asked that the Pooch Park volunteers remain aware of this issue, but that
she thought the park was a “great idea” and would vote to move forward with this item.

Commissioner Stanford said he's spoken with a number of people and “they couldn’t be
happier with it,” felt it was a “great addition to the City,” that it had really started growing
on the public and something he could personally endorse.

Commissioner Stanford MADE A MOTION to approve the establishment of Pooch Park
as a permanent park facility and the formation of a dog park non-profit organization to
manage the facility through an agreement with the City. Commissioner Shanfield
SECONDED the motion. Vice-Chair Dasney called for the vote.

AYES: Adam, Chen, Dasney, Shanfield, Spencer, Stanford
NOES: None

ABSENT:  Russell

The MOTION PASSED unanimously.

Commissioner Shanfield asked for clarification in the attached Library Board minutes,
where someone asked if the dog park could possibly be enlarged. She asked if the
Hunt Branch Library were to be renovated, if there was a possibility of the configuration
of the dog park being changed. Director Felz explained that there was a difference
between the property designated as park property and the property designated as
library property which has an overlay with State mandates, and that some property line
issues needed to be honored at the dog park. Part of the commitment would be, while
making improvements to Pooch Park, to respect the architecture of the library as well
as good design and traffic flow. With the park property, Director Felz said the City



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 4
February 9, 2009

could, in theory, do anything within its boundaries, noting that the park property was
very close to the fence, going east. Vice Chair Dasney said the property lines were
very clear and that the dog park operated within the proper boundaries. Commissioner
Shanfield expressed appreciation for the clarification.

5. CSUF LEARNING ACTIVITY PLACEMENT AGREEMENT

Director Felz said the agenda item on the proposed California State University Fullerton
Activity Placement Agreement was part of the Parks and Recreation Department's
practice of bringing new agreements to Commission for its review. He said the
agreement was not like a typical grant application, but rather more a programming
element. He recognized Manager Judy Peterson and Recreation Supervisor Aaron
Orozco for their hard work in establishing partnerships and relationships, saying this
should be beneficial for both parties. He further noted that this programming was
consistent with the current youth and teen programming at the City's community centers.
And, unlike most agreements, there would be no matching funds or City property that
would require placement of a building. Director Felz said while there would be some staff
time involved, this program would be a no-cost partnership using existing resources, with
no new allocation of funding. He said the program would be implemented as soon as
possible, and introduced Supervisor Orozco to answer commissioner questions, noting
that the agreement would go to Council to be ratified. '

Commissioner Adam asked how many CSUF students and how many school students
would be participating, and Supervisor Orozco said it would be difficult to determine the
numbers because it was a new program. He said there were three elements: 1.)
Internships at each center site for activities such as marketing or teaching, 2.) Service
learning projects with several students working on a specific project; e.g. fighting
childhood obesity or the fine arts; and 3.) The America Reads and Counts (ARC)
Program which would provide one-on-one tutoring. Supervisor Orozco said there could
potentially be hundreds of kids at each site, and the program would be coordinated with
the school principals.

Commissioner Adam asked about the curriculum, and Supervisor Orozco said ARC is a
nationwide program funded through a federal work study program by the CSUF Office of
Internships and Community Engagement with a curriculum already established. He said
their coursework would have to be related to something with which Parks and Recreation
was involved.

Commissioner Adam asked if the students had to come up with the curriculum. or if Parks
and Recreation would develop or recommend something. Supervisor Orozco provided an
example of a kinesiology class where students wishing to do a service learning project on
childhood obesity would be matched with appropriate Parks and Recreation programs
and youth. He said the coursework would be managed by CSUF and there would be no
cost for materials.

Commissioner Stanford asked what the possible downside or negatives might be, and
Supervisor Orozco said he didn't see any negatives, but an impact would be that while
there would be no cost, he and his coordinators would be providing oversight and
evaluation of the students. Commissioner Stanford said he then didn't see a problem
with the CSUF program.



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 5
February 9, 2009

Commissioner Shanfield said she definitely saw the value of the program, but asked how
the proposed program would be different from other volunteer programs at each of the
centers. Director Felz said some of the differences were the direct link to and support
from an institution, plus a strong motivation such as grades or money through a paid
internship, agreeing with Vice Chair Dasney that there would be more reliability with the
CSUF program. Director Felz referred to the downside Commissioner Stanford asked
about, and said that while one is working with college students, some can still be
unreliable; however, this model would reduce those risks.

Supervisor Orozco said this program would establish a formal relationship with CSUF,
and that there would be multiple and continuing resources coming in throughout the year.
When Commissioner Stanford asked about screening, he told him that the Department of
Justice would screen the students for free through the Livescan process.

Commissioner Chen said the program was a “win-win” situation with the youth benefiting
from the college students as role models and those college students becoming better
leaders by taking on real responsibility. She asked how long the contract term would be,
who would evaluate the program and who would make modifications if there were any
problems, e.g. high turnover or other barriers. Supervisor Orozco said staff was trying to
set up a relationship with the Office of Internships and Community Engagement, and they
were reviewing the type of oversight needed. He said staff would also be evaluating the
interns and students, and also noted the agreement could be ended with 30 days’ notice;
however, they were hoping the program will be successful though good communications
and dialogue with CSUF.

Commissioner Chen asked if the program would be similar to a student teaching situation
with CSUF professors making site visits; however, Supervisor Orozco said the internships
were different from the credentialed program. He said the Office of Internships and
Community Engagement was relying on City staff to provide oversight and evaluation with
direct reports to that office. When asked, he said the forms were already developed by
CSUF and would be completed, probably monthly. He added that the students will
receive orientation so they understand the program prior to participation. Commissioner
Chen asked how it would affect City staff who were then, in a sense, promoted to
supervisors of interns, but Supervisor Orozco said all sites would have staff who were
already site leads who have already received training in supervision. He added that
CSUF will also provide training.

Commissioner Chen asked what the staff/student ratio would be, and how often each
youth would be seen, noting that consistency would be very important. Supervisor
Orozco said the student interns would not be included in the staff/student ratio, and that
the interns would be scheduled on a regular basis for a semester. Service learning would
be shorter term with specific projects. Commissioner Chen said she “loved the idea” but
reiterated that it was important that there was consistency for the students’ well-being.

Vice Chair Dasney asked if there were specific commitment hours or days, and
Supervisor Orozco said it would depend on the course requirements. Commissioner
Adam said she had four students from Cal Poly in her classroom, and that their hours
vary. Vice Chair Dasney said CSUF students have been used in Fullerton schools and
asked if this was the same as the proposed program; Supervisor Orozco said he wasn’t
sure. Vice Chair Dasney asked about the sustainability of the program, and Director Felz



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 6
February 9, 2009

said the program would go semester to semester. Vice Chair Dasney noted that even if
the program were to end, staff wouldn't have to fill a big hole with City funds, and Director
Felz agreed with this assessment.

Vice Chair Dasney asked for any other comments, and Commissioner Shanfield said as
the mother of college students, she knew these programs could make a huge impact on
what career decisions they make, and also helps the community. She said she believes
these programs were “the wave of the future.” Commissioner Spencer said the City
always had some interns, so it's not entirely new. Director Felz confirmed this, but said
this program was probably more organized and detailed.

Commissioner Chen asked if Supervisor Orozco could report back in a year, to which he
replied “definitely.”

Vice Chair Dasney said the agreement was a little confusing as to who the “students”
were that were referred to, and Director Felz agreed, said it referred to the college
students and he would try to clarify this.

Commissioner Chen MADE A MOTION to recommend approval of the CSUF agreement
to City Council, and Commissioner Spencer SECONDED the motion. Vice Chair Dasney
called for the vote.

AYES: Adam, Chen, Dasney, Shanfield, Spencer, Stanford
NOES: None

ABSENT:  Russell

The MOTION PASSED unanimously.

6. REPORT ON CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS

Director Felz reported on City Council agenda items related to the Parks and Recreation
Department. He said awards were presented at the February 3, 2009 Council meeting for
the Fall session of the Adopt-A-Park, which occurs semi-annually.

He then updated the commissioners on the first reading of the No-Smoking Ordinance
which was essentially what Commission had recommended except Council chose not to
establish a small smoking area at Laguna Lake. He noted that a second reading would
be given at the next Council meeting, with the ordinance then going into effect after a 30-
day waiting period. Park staff would work on awareness education, particularly at Laguna
Lake. He confirmed for Commissioner Stanford that Council, after a short discussion,
decided there would not be a smoking area at Laguna Lake. The high fire severity zones
including Robert Ward Nature Preserve and all of Brea Dam, state designations, all trails
and all of Laguna Lake would be non-smoking in about six weeks. He verified for
Commissioner Shanfield that smoking would be allowed at parks except for tot lot areas
outlawed by the state as well as activities governed by national sports bodies, e.g., Little
League doesn’t allow smoking while games are being played.

Commissioner Shanfield asked that some clarifying information about the new smoking
policies be put in the City newsletter. Director Felz said they would do this, and Public



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 7
February 9, 2009

Information Officer Sylvia Palmer would assist with this through City mailings. He noted
that the trails would be difficult to monitor, but the main issue would be at Laguna Lake
which would definitely require education.

Commissioner Adam asked if in six weeks there would be no smoking, or if someone
could come to Council and ask for smoking at Laguna Lake. Director Felz replied that it
was possible but there was “a lot of water under the bridge” with three Commission
reviews, a Council hearing and a first reading of the ordinance, and it would be unusual
for Council to reconsider its decision at this point. Commissioner Adam said she had
heard from some community members who were annoyed about smoking privileges
being revoked at Laguna Lake and asked what they should do. Director Felz said they
should come to the February 17 Council meeting and ask that the item be removed from
the Consent Calendar for discussion.

7. DIRECTOR'’S UPDATE

Director Felz said he would discuss the budget a little later, and said there were several
Parks and Recreation “housekeeping” items going to Council including how the Adopt-A-
Park MOU’s would be approved, the Commission’s recommendation on amending the
Memorial Tree and Bench Policy to add more language options to plaques, and the
CSUF internship agreement.

Director Felz spoke on the commission/committee appointment process, and said there
was a change in the direction Council was going, which was to revert back to the prior
process of applicant interviews and an advisory board. He said there would still be direct
appointments but the at-large appointment process would have to be further discussed
and might involve some separate Council member interviews;, hence, current
committee/commission members were asked to continue until Council had completed
their decisions.

Director Felz confirmed with Vice Chair Dasney that there would be applications but no
ranking, which she felt was even more onerous than the previous process because now
there would be no screening process. He said this was still a fluid situation that could
change. Vice Chair Dasney said the City Clerk’s letter carried a recommendation for
having two panels for interviews. She asked about the two different types of processes,
and Director Felz said it was done so they could move more quickly through the 52 slots
for the various committees. He said the Council wanted to conclude the appointment
process as soon as possible but didn't have a date for this.

Commissioner Shanfield said most recently, there were applications but Council was
appointing without interviews. She said the Applicant Review Board was now reviewing
the at-large applicants. Director Felz said staff would keep the Commission posted.

Director Felz spoke on Metropolitan Water District water conservation mandates,
particularly as Parks and Recreation was the biggest user of water in the City. Staff will
go to Council to address the highest uses which was park properties and its plans for
10% cutbacks. Staff will recommend that Commission review the water cutback plans
with varied options. Director Felz said the sports field users will want to be involved, that
Laguna Lake uses a “shocking amount” of water.



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 8
February 9, 2009

Commissioner Stanford asked about school water use and who paid for the water;
Superintendent Quinlivan said the schools paid for a percentage of the water usage, and
Director Felz said staff would have to return with a more detailed answer on which
properties would be affected.

Commissioner Chen asked what number to call for water usage emergencies or
problems, and Director Felz said staff can e-mail Water Quality Specialist Chad Blais’
phone number in Engineering. Vice Chair Dasney noted there was a hotline for water
waste, too.

Director Felz said staff is implementing 5% or 6% cuts to the Department budget. He
noted the City hiring freeze, and travel restrictions with the situation changing daily. He
said state funding was frozen including reimbursements due of over $1 million, but that
the City-wide strategy was to move ahead and plan a budget for June, as directed by the
City Manager, and if more cuts were needed in July, staff would do so at that time.

Director Felz said capital projects are the Department’s biggest budget item. He said staff
is monitoring the economic stimulus package and what projects are available, mostly
transportation-related although park and community infrastructure projects will also be
eligible. Federal appropriations were submitted, so if funded, City money could be moved
around which can positively impact all City departments. As approved by Council,
Director Felz said the number one priority is the Community Center at a cost of $25
million with $21 million set aside for it; hence, the City will try to access federal dollars to
make up the difference.

Director Felz noted that the Lions Field budget of $14.5 million for the improvements, on a
fast track for August 2010, was on the February 17" Council agenda. Other projects he
noted were the Richman Community Center addition which was not yet occupied due to
the bankruptcy of the modular building provider, but staff was working with Maintenance
and Engineering to clean up loose ends at the building while trying to get title to the
building from CSUF. However, the Richman Park field lighting is on track and should be
done by October. The Hiltscher Trail project was moving forward, and the traffic signal
design, which includes a user-triggered signal near Euclid, is completed.

The Tennis Center project is in preliminary discussion with St. Jude to move the Tennis
Center down to Bastanchury, next to the Sports Complex. At this time, Director Felz said,
this was just an idea but worth exploring as part of the next phase of the St. Jude
construction. Commissioner Adam referred to a letter in the “Observer” complaining that
there weren’t enough facilities since the Racquetball Club was taken away. Director Felz
said the Racquetball Club was a private club and clarified that the Tennis Center site
would revert back to public use after St. Jude finished construction. He also clarified for
Commissioner Shanfield that the Army Corps of Engineers, which owns the Tennis
Center property, has authorized the City to discuss this proposal with St. Jude.

Regarding program highlights, Director Felz said that Snow Day went well with a nice turn
out, and the “Women in Baseball’ exhibit opening was successful. He said the
Department’s latest newsletter came out in January.



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes Page 9
February 9, 2009

Vice Chair Dasney said the Museum was having a special day that was not yet
advertised. She said a couple of original team members represented in the “A League of
Their Own” movie would be coming sometime in March. Director Felz said the
Commission would be notified.

8. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

There were no commissioner comments.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Vice Chair adjourned the meeting at 7:38 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,







